

# Monkeypox patient information leaflet

This information is correct at time of publishing. Monkeypox guidance may change so please check <u>nhs.uk</u> and <u>gov.uk</u> for the most current information.

Your healthcare team has sent a monkeypox test for suspected monkeypox. This leaflet provides you with information on how to get your result, as well as clinical advice on isolation and monitoring your symptoms.

Depending on where you had your monkeypox test, the contact details of your healthcare team are below if you need to discuss any concerns or change in symptoms:

	Patients tested in the Jefferiss Wing sexual health clinic	Patients tested anywhere else, including A&E
Whilst awaiting your result / if you have not received your monkeypox result within 72 hours Mon-Fri 9am-4.30pm (except	Contact the Jefferiss Wing call centre: 0203 312 1225	Contact the Infectious Diseases service: imperial.infectionreferrals@nhs.net
Wednesday mornings)	The team will contact you on the day or following day.	The team will contact you on the day or following day.
Whilst awaiting your result		
Mon-Fri after 4.30pm & weekends	Phone NHS 111	
If you have confirmed monkeypox Mon-Sun 9am-7pm	Our Remote Patient Monitoring team will be in touch with you. You can contact them on 07385950852 or the Luscii app.	
If you have confirmed monkeypox Mon-Sun after 7pm	Phone NHS 111	

#### Getting your monkeypox test result

You will receive a text message from Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust with your monkeypox test result between **24-72 hours** after your sample is taken. **Whilst waiting for your result, you will need to self-isolate, please follow the instructions in this leaflet.** 

If you were tested outside of the Jefferiss Wing sexual health clinic, you can also register with the 'Patients Know Best' service, which will enable you to see your result directly from home on your computer, smartphone or tablet. You can register at <a href="https://patientsknowbest.com/">https://patientsknowbest.com/</a>. You can also register via the NHS app on your smartphone or tablet by selecting 'Your health' at the bottom of the home screen, and then selecting 'Test results and imaging'. Jefferiss Wing patient results will not appear on the 'Patients Know Best' service.

- If you receive a **POSITIVE** result, this means you have monkeypox. You will need to continue to self-isolate, please follow the instructions in this leaflet.
- If you receive a NEGATIVE result, this means you do not have monkeypox. You do not have to self-isolate and can continue with life as normal.

#### If you have had a negative result but are still concerned:

If you receive a negative result, but are still concerned about your symptoms, please seek medical attention via:

- 1. Your GP
- 2. Your local sexual health service if you are concerned about a sexually transmitted infection
- 3. NHS 111 if you are concerned you are unwell

#### If you have had a positive result:

You will need to continue to isolate at home. A member of our Remote Patient Monitoring team will call you regularly to monitor your symptoms and answer any questions you may have. A member of the London Coordination and Response Cell will call you within 48 hours to discuss implications for others in your household and other contacts.

#### Isolating at home

Monkeypox virus can be spread from an infected patient through:

- touching clothing, bedding or towels they use
- touching their skin blisters or scabs
- coughing or sneezing
- prolonged skin to skin contact

Full guidance on isolating at home has been published by the UK Health Security Agency and is available at: <u>www.gov.uk/guidance</u> – search 'monkeypox' and click the first link '**Monkeypox: guidance**' – scroll down and click '**Monkeypox: infected people who are isolating at home'**. This includes details on how to clean your home and dispose of waste, as well as what to do with any pets. If you feel you are unable to self-isolate at home, please inform the Remote Patient Monitoring team immediately.

- If you are suspected of having monkeypox, or have been confirmed as having monkeypox, you should **not go to work, school or public areas.**
- Do not invite or allow social visitors, such as friends and family, to visit you at home.
- Avoid close contact with people you live with, take the following steps to reduce the chance of passing your infection on to the people you live with:
- Sleep in a separate room, if available, and do not share bedding. You may need to change your sleeping arrangements to accommodate this.
- Use a separate bathroom from the rest of your household, if available. If you do not have a separate bathroom, follow the cleaning instructions in the link above.
- Use separate towels from other people in your home.
- Eat in a separate room. Ask the people you live with to bring your meals to you, do not share food and drinks.
- Clean your hands frequently throughout the day by washing with soap and water for 20 seconds. Care should be taken if there are extensive or ulcerated hand spots.
- Keep your laundry items separate from the rest of the household's laundry and wash them using your normal detergent, following manufacturer's instructions. If possible use the highest temperature which the items can withstand, do not overload the washing machine (aim for half or two-thirds full) and avoid shorter 'economy cycles' (those which reduce water and save energy) until you have fully recovered.

You should only leave your home for essential purposes such as emergencies, or for urgent health and wellbeing issues.

- If you need to leave your home, make sure the rash on your body is completely covered for example by wearing long-sleeved top and full-length trousers. Wear a well-fitting surgical face mask or a double-layered face covering while you are outside your home.
- Keep the time spent outside your home as short as possible and avoid all contact with objects such as furniture in public spaces. If you need to attend hospital you should walk, cycle or drive yourself there. If you do not have your own vehicle, public transport can be used but you should avoid busy periods, cover any spots with cloth (for example using scarfs or bandages) and wear a face covering.

#### **Medical advice**

You should discuss any health concerns, including any concerns that may not relate to monkeypox, with the Remote Patient Monitoring team. Details of monkeypox symptoms are shown below.

If you have difficulty contacting your local healthcare team please dial 111. If you require immediate emergency care please call 999. You should tell the operator that you have confirmed monkeypox and advise them of the healthcare team that are looking after you.

All non-urgent medical and dental appointments should be cancelled while you are isolating at home. If you are concerned or have been asked to attend in person within the period you are home isolating, discuss this with your medical contact first.

#### Mild monkeypox symptoms

Symptoms are often mild and it can take between 5 and 21 days for the first symptoms to appear. These usually clear up within two to four weeks. Mild symptoms include:

- mild rash / spots limited to face, genitals, hands and feet
- mild fever, temperature or chills
- headache
- muscle aches
- backache
- swollen glands in neck, groin or armpits
- mild fatigue
- rectal pain

These are common symptoms. You may not have all of these but still feel unwell. Paracetamol and regular fluids can help with these symptoms, and most people will get better by themselves within two to four weeks. If you are still feeling unwell after this time, please contact your healthcare team.

It is important that you monitor and report any worsening or new symptoms. Your healthcare team may encourage you to take pictures of your rash / spots, especially if these areas become red, hot or swollen as this may be a sign of worsening infection.

### **Contact your healthcare team**

If you experience any of the following symptoms, you should contact the Remote Patient Monitoring team (07385950852) or NHS 111 as soon as possible:

- significant increase of new spots
- very painful spots, eg spots causing difficulty with passing urine or swallowing
- any new signs of spots that may be rapidly spreading
- hot/red/swollen skin rash
- any problems with eyes or vision eg double vision, blurred vision, eyes becoming yellow in colour or eye pain
- feeling breathless especially when standing up or moving
- new fever that may be a sign of infection
- areas of redness/swelling that can indicate spreading of infection
- change in symptoms, eg dark urine, light or pale stool, abdominal pain or itchy skin
- sense that something is wrong (general weakness, severe tiredness, peeing much less than normal, unable to care for yourself eg simple tasks like washing and dressing or difficulties eating and drinking)
- severe muscle aches or tiredness.

If you are finding it difficult to cope with isolation please speak to your healthcare team.

## Call 999

A minority of people with monkeypox will suffer more severe symptoms or complications. You should dial 999 immediately if you experience the following signs of serious illness:

- sudden difficulty in breathing or breathing faster than normal
- unable to complete short sentences whilst at rest due to breathlessness
- you collapse or faint
- become agitated, confused or very drowsy
- feeling cold and sweaty with pale or blotchy skin
- shivering and shaking uncontrollably
- develop a rash that doesn't fade when you roll a glass over it
- coughing up blood
- stop passing urine or are passing much less urine than usual.

#### You should tell the operator that you have confirmed or probable monkeypox.

### **Coming out of isolation**

- This should be discussed between you and your healthcare team.
- You should self-isolate at home until:
  - you have not had a high temperature for at least 72 hours
  - you have had no new spots in the previous 48 hours
  - all your spots have scabbed over
  - you have no spots in your mouth
  - any spots on your face, arms and hands have scabbed over, all the scabs have fallen off and a fresh layer of skin has formed underneath
- If you meet all of the points above, you may be able to stop self-isolating and you should contact the medical team for further advice.
- You should continue to avoid close contact with young children, pregnant women and immunosuppressed people until the scabs on all your spots have fallen off and a fresh layer of skin has formed underneath. This is because you may still be infectious until the scabs have fallen off.
- After your self-isolation has ended you should cover any remaining spots when leaving the house or having close contact with people in your household until all the scabs have fallen off and a fresh layer of skin has formed underneath.
- If resuming sexual activity after your self-isolation has ended, you should use a condom for 12 weeks after your rash has scabbed over and scabs have fallen off.
  This is a precaution to reduce the risk of spreading infection to your partner.
- If you have been sexually active prior to your monkeypox test and not since had a sexual health check-up, please contact your local sexual health clinic, the Jefferiss Wing clinic on 0203 312 1225 or order a home sexual health test kit on <u>shl.uk</u>